
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
Weaverville Community Room at Town Hall 
30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 28787 

In-Person and Remote Access via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85948891960  
Meeting ID: 859 4889 1960 

AGENDA 

Monday, January 24, 2021 
Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm 

 

General public comments may be submitted during the meeting or in writing in advance on any meeting topic or any other item of interest. Normal rules of 
decorum apply to all comments and duplicate comments are discouraged. The general public comments section of the meeting will be limited to 20 minutes and 
priority will be given to those commenters in attendance and residents of the Town. Comments during the meeting are generally limited to 3 minutes. . For those 
attending remotely, at the appropriate time you will be asked to “raise a hand” if you would like to give a comment (this is found with the reactions button on 
Zoom). You must be recognized before giving your comment and are asked to turn your video on during your comments if possible. Written comments timely 
received will be provided to Town Council, included as part of the minutes of the meeting, and read into the record during the 20-minute general public comment 
period as time allows. Written comments are limited to no more than 450 words and can be submitted as follows: (1) by putting your written comment in a drop 
box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at 
least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written comment (received not later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, 
Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments. For more information please call (828)645-7116. 
 

  Pg # Presenter 
    

1. Call to Order ............................................................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ...................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    
    
3. Consent Agenda .....................................................................................................  Town Manager Coffey 
 A. December 20, 2021, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes ……………………….… 

B. Amendment to October 25, 2021, Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes ……. 
C. Monthly Tax Report ……………………..……..……………………………………………..………….. 
D. Budget Amendments – Public Wi-Fi, Police, Fire …………………………………………..… 
E. Budget Amendment – Community Center ………………………………………………………. 
F. Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Resolutions …………………………………………… 
G. Proposed Personnel Policy Amendments …..……………………..…………..……………….. 
H. Resolution Approving Donation of Surplus Personal Property ………………………… 

3 
7 

11 
16 
18 
20 
24 
29 

 

    
4. Town Manager’s Report .......................................................................................... 31 Town Manager Coffey 
    
5. General Public Comments (see below for additional information) …...…………….....  Mayor Fitzsimmons 
    
6. Discussion & Action Items   
 A. Water Allocation Request: Ollie Weaver Road …..….……………….…………………….… 

B. Water System Committee Recommendations …………………………………………………  
C. Proposed Recreation Complex …..…………………………………………………………………… 
D. COVID-19 Vaccination Surcharges/Incentives Update ………………………….…………. 
E. Economic Development Advisory Committee Update ………….…………………………. 
F. Quarterly Report – Planning …………………………………………..…............................... 
G. Quarterly Report – Finance …………………………………………………………………………….. 

32 
39 
42 
44 
47 
48 
51 

Town Manager/PW Dir. 
Vice-Mayor McKenna 
Town Manager Coffey 
Town Manager Coffey 
Mayor Fitzsimmons 
Planning Director Eller 
Finance Director Dozier 

    
7. Adjournment ...........................................................................................................  Mayor Fitzsimmons 

    

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85948891960
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2022, AT 6PM 
REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING LOGIN CREDENTIALS 

 
This NOTICE OF REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING is provided pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 166-
19.24 to inform the public that the Weaverville Town Council will hold its regularly scheduled 
meeting on Monday, January 24, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. as both an in-person meeting (Council 
Chambers/Community Room at Town Hall, 30 South Main Street) and as an electronic video 
meeting via Zoom. For those wishing to participate remotely via Zoom the following information is 
provided. 

A virtual waiting room will be enabled beginning at 5:45 p.m. and participants will be 
allowed entry into the meeting just prior to the start of the meeting at 6:00 p.m. The 
instructions to access this public meeting are:  

To join the meeting by computer, go to this link 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85948891960 

 You may be asked for permission to access your computer’s video and audio. If so, click 
“allow.” You will then be asked for the Meeting ID which is: 859 4889 1960. You will first 
enter a virtual waiting room. The host will admit you into the meeting close to 6:00 p.m. 

To join the meeting by phone, call: (253) 215-8782 or (301)715 8592 
You will then be asked for the Meeting ID which is: 859 4889 1960 . There is no password for 
this meeting, so if asked for one just press the # button.  

Guidelines and Instructions for General Public Comment: A portion of the meeting will be set 
aside for general public comments. Normal rules of decorum apply to all comments and duplicate 
comments are discouraged. Public comments may be submitted during the meeting or in writing in 
advance. The public comments section of the meeting will be limited to approximately 20 minutes, 
but may be extended by Town Council if time allows. If attending remotely, at the appropriate time 
you will be asked to “raise a hand” if you would like to give a comment (this is found with the 
reactions button on Zoom). You must be recognized before giving your comment and are asked to 
turn your video on during your comments if possible. Individual comments during the meeting are 
generally limited to 3 minutes. Written comments timely received will be provided to Town Council, 
included as part of the minutes of the meeting, and read into the record during the meeting as time 
allows. Written comments are limited to no more than 450 words and can be submitted as follows: 
(1) by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by 
putting your written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back 
parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written comment (received 
not later than with the mail delivery on the meeting day) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, 
Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments. For more information please call (828)645-7116. 

To view the agenda and related materials, please visit the Town’s website at 
https://www.weavervillenc.org. 

Access to the Meeting Recording: A recording of the meeting will be available for several months 
beginning 24 hours after the meeting. To access the recording visit the Town’s YouTube channel at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkBK1doIGY_O6_vJiqimFUQ or the Town’s website at 
https://www.weavervillenc.org, or call the Town Clerk at (828)645-7116.  
 
Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor  
1/21/2022  

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85948891960
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org
https://www.weavervillenc.org/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkBK1doIGY_O6_vJiqimFUQ
https://www.weavervillenc.org/


Page 1 of 4 
December 20, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

MINUTES
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, December 20, 2021 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly monthly meeting on Monday, 
December 20, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, NC. 

Councilmembers present were: Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons, Vice Mayor Jeff McKenna, and 
Councilmembers Doug Jackson, Andrew Nagle, John Chase, Catherine Cordell, Andrew Nagle and 
Michele Wood.  

Staff members present were: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, 
Clerk/Planning Director James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief 
Ted Williams, Public Works Director Dale Pennell, Water Superintendent Trent Duncan. 

1. Call to Order
Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda
Noting no desired revision to the agenda by Town Council, Mayor Fitzsimmons declared the agenda
approved by consent.

3. Special Recognition
Mayor Fitzsimmons recognized Earl Valois for his service to the town as a representative on the
Metropolitan Sewerage District of Buncombe County Board of Directors.

4. General Public Comment
General public comments may be submitted either during the meeting or in writing in advance of the
meeting. Normal rules of decorum apply to all comments. The general public comments section of the
meeting will be limited to 20 minutes and priority will be given to those commenters in attendance.
Individuals presenting comments during the meeting are generally limited to 3 minutes. Written
comments that are timely received will be provided to Town Council, included as part of the minutes
of the meeting, and read into the record during the 20-minute general public comment period as time
allows. Written comments are limited to no more than 450 words and can be submitted as follows: (1)
by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by
putting your written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back parking
lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written comment (must be received not
later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787,
Attn: Public Comments. For more information please call (828)645-7116.

3



Page 2 of 4 
December 20, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Jay Schauer of 27 Alabama Avenue spoke to Council regarding information related to the 
Community Center and the Weaverville Center for Creative and Healthy Living. 

Ward Patton spoke to Council regarding the ongoing efforts to update the town’s noise ordinances. 

James Heinl spoke to Council requesting a delay in the scheduling of a public hearing related to a 
voluntary annexation request.  

5. Consent Agenda
Councilmember Jackson moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilmember McKenna
seconded the motion. All voted in favor of the motion to approve all action requested in the Consent
Agenda listed below. Motion passed 7-0.

A. Town Council Minutes – November 16, 2021 special called meeting of Town Council
B. Town Council Minutes – November 22, 2021 regular meeting of Town Council
C. Town Council Minutes – December 14, 2021 workshop meeting of Town Council
D. Monthly Tax Report – Information only; submitted by Buncombe County Tax Department
E. Budget Amendment – Cops for Kids – Budget amendment related to the Police Department
F. Budget Amendment – Community Center – Budget amendment related to the Community

Center
G. Board Appointments – MSD, Board of Adjustment, Planning Board Liaison – Appointment

of Doug Dearth to the MSD Board, appointment of Caleb Fieser as an alternate member of the
Board of Adjustment, appointment of Catherine Cordell as Town Council Liaison to the Planning
Board.

H. Board of Adjustment – Amendment to Rules of Procedure – Change in regular meeting time
from 7pm to 6pm.

I. Town Council Regular Meeting Schedule Final Approval – Adoption of the 2022 regular
meeting and holiday schedule.

J. Fee Schedule Amendment – Amendments related to fire line consumption.

6. Town Manager’s Report
Ms. Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council which included information related to a voting
site at Town Hall, the January 2022 Town Council workshop, a noise ordinance update, remote
meeting procedures update, and public wi-fi update.

7. Discussion and Action Items
A. FY 2020 – 2021 Audit Presentation

Travis Keever of Gould Killian CPA Group, P.A. presented Town Council with the 2021 annual
financial report which issued an unmodified opinion, reported no material weakness in internal
control and reported no instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations.

B. Tax Collections
Ms. Dozier presented information to Town Council related to how municipal taxes are collected.
Items for discussion included a history of municipal tax collection, legal matters, local and
statewide trends, the current contract for tax collection with Buncombe County, audit and
accounting matters, results of Buncombe County tax collection, staffing for tax collection, other
municipal costs, position classification, cost comparison actuals, cost comparison estimates, and
the impact of county tax collection on Council, staff and taxpayers. Also of note is that should
Town Council wish to terminate the tax collection agreement with the County, notice must be
provided to the County no later than January 31, 2022.

4



Page 3 of 4                                                                                                                                       
 December 20, 2021  

   Town Council  
    Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

Through discussion on the issue, it became the consensus of Council to not terminate the tax 
collection agreement with Buncombe County and, therefore, for the County to continue municipal 
tax collection.   
  

C. State Revolving Fund Grant Application Proposal 
Mr. Duncan provided Council with a briefing on monies that may be available through the Clean 
Water State Revolving fund for certain projects which may be considered separate and apart from 
the water treatment plant expansion project including the installation of needed generators and 
other water supply resiliency improvements. WithersRavenel has submitted a proposal for 
drafting and submitting grant applications on behalf of the Town for water supply resiliency 
improvements and for the entire water treatment plant expansion project. The proposal includes a 
fee of $5,000.  
 
Councilmember Cordell made a motion to approve the proposal from WithersRavenel and related 
budget amendment. Councilmember Jackson seconded. Via a role call the motion passed in a 
majority vote of 6-1 with Councilmember Nagle casting a dissenting vote..      
 

D. Weaverville Tailgate Market Memorandum of Understanding 
Ms. Jackson presented to Council the proposed memorandum of understanding between the 
Town of Weaverville and the Weaverville Tailgate Market for the purpose of providing a general 
framework for collaboration between the Town and Market for the use of the Community Center 
at Dottie Sherrill Knoll.  
 
Council discussed at length the cleaning fee of $80, per market occurrence, which was included 
in the terms of the MOU. A Weaverville Tailgate Market representative spoke to Council 
regarding the impact on the Market of such a fee. Laura Ayers and Michele Balsom also provide 
positive comments regarding the Market being held at the Community Center.  
   
Councilmember Nagle motioned to adopt the MOU as presented. Councilmember Jackson 
seconded and via a role call vote the motion passed with a majority vote of 5-2 with Vice Mayor 
McKenna and Councilmember Cordell casting dissenting votes. 
 

E. Annexation Petition for 25+ Acres on Ollie Weaver Road 
Mr. Eller presented Council with information related to the proposed voluntary annexation 
including the location of the properties, the aggregate acreage of the properties and the desired 
zoning district and use of the properties if annexed. Additional information provided included a 
certificate of sufficiency, the annexation petition, data sheet and certificate of authority, survey 
and property tax map, application for a zoning map amendment, water commitment application 
and staff report.   
 
Councilmember Chase motioned to set a date of Monday, February 28 for public hearings on the 
proposed annexation and zoning map amendment. Mayor Fitzsimmons seconded. Via a role call 
vote the motion passed with a majority vote of 5-2 with Vice Mayor McKenna and 
Councilmember Nagle cast dissenting votes.  
 

F. COVID-19 Vaccination Mandates / Incentives  
Ms. Coffey described that Mayor Fitzsimmons has requested that Council discuss the town 
employee’s vaccinations at this meeting. Ms. Coffey provided information related to the 
vaccination status of employees within the Town’s individual departments.  
 

5



Page 4 of 4 
December 20, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Through discussion it became the consensus of Council for the Ms. Coffey to craft and implement 
a policy related to COVID-19 vaccination incentives, weekly testing, departmental incentives, 
and surcharges for employees who remain unvaccinated.   

G. Quarterly Report – Public Works and Water
Mr. Pennell presented Town Council with the quarterly report for the Public Works and Water
Departments.

8. Adjournment.
Without objection, Mayor Fitzsimmons declared the meeting adjourned. Meeting adjourned at 9:45
p.m.

__________________________________________ 
James Eller, Town Clerk 

6



Page 1 of 4 
October 25, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

MINUTES
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, October 25, 2021 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly monthly meeting on Monday, 
October 25, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, NC. 

Councilmembers present were: Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and 
Councilmembers John Chase, Jeffrey McKenna and Dottie Sherrill. Councilmember Andrew Nagle was 
absent. 

Staff members present were: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, 
Clerk/Planning Director James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief 
Ted Williams, Public Works Director Dale Pennell, Water Superintendent Trent Duncan and Recreation 
Coordinator Shelby Stovall. 

1. Call to Order
Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda
Councilmember McKenna requested that the appointment of Councilmember Chase to the French
Broad River Metropolitan Planning Organization be added to the consent agenda as agenda item 5G.
Ms Coffey requested that a road closure ordinance for the Christmas parade be added as consent
agenda item 5H.

Vice Mayor Jackson motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Councilmember McKenna
seconded and all voted in favor. Motion passed 4-0.

3. Approval of the Minutes
Councilmember McKenna motioned to adopt the minutes as presented. Councilmember Sherrill
seconded and all voted in favor. Motion passed 4-0.

4. General Public Comment
General public comments may be submitted either during the meeting or in writing in advance of the
meeting. Normal rules of decorum apply to all comments. The general public comments section of the
meeting will be limited to 20 minutes and priority will be given to those commenters in attendance.
Individuals presenting comments during the meeting are generally limited to 3 minutes. Written
comments that are timely received will be provided to Town Council, included as part of the minutes
of the meeting, and read into the record during the 20-minute general public comment period as time
allows. Written comments are limited to no more than 450 words and can be submitted as follows: (1)

7



Page 2 of 4 
October 25, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by 
putting your written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back parking 
lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written comment (must be received not 
later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, 
Attn: Public Comments. For more information please call (828)645-7116. 

Kevin Ude of 20 Alabama Avenue spoke to Council regarding a request to strengthen the town’s 
noise ordinance. 

Elizabeth Swann of 19 Alabama Avenue spoke to Council regarding a request to strengthen the 
town’s noise ordinance. 

Cameron Patton, on behalf of the Weaver House, spoke to Council regarding his willingness to work 
with the town related to noise complaints. 

Mr. Eller read a written comment submitted by Beth Mangum supporting Weaver House on Main 
Street.  

5. Consent Agenda
Councilmember Sherril moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilmember McKenna
seconded the motion. All voted in favor of the motion to approve all action requested in the Consent
Agenda listed below. Motion passed 4-0.

A. Monthly Tax Report and Tax Collector’s Settlement – Information only – submitted by
Buncombe County Tax Department.

B. Budget Amendment – Police, Fire and Public Works – Budget amendments related to the
police department, fire department and public works.

C. Budget Amendment – Community Center  – Budget amendment related to the Community
Center project.

D. Source Water Resiliency and Response Plan – Notice provided pursuant to NCGS 130-320 of
the development and implementation of a SWRRP

E. Set Public Hearing for 11/22/21at 7pm on Code Amendments for Chapter 20 regarding Flag
Lots and Technical Changes – Public hearing set for ordinance amendments.

F. Board Appointments – Appointment to the Planning Board
G. Nomination of Councilmember John Chase the FBRMPO – Councilmember Chase appointed

to the FBRMPO
H. Road Closure Ordinance – Closure of Main Street for the Christmas Parade.

6. Town Manager’s Report
Ms. Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council which included information related to a public
wifi system, 2021 Christmas parade, an update on the Woodfin annexation agreement, remote &
hybrid meeting procedures, the November Town Council workshop and multi-factor authentication
for network security.

7. Discussion and Action Items
A. Tailgate Market Request

Lori Jenkins spoke to Council regarding the Weaverville Tailgate Market Request for use of
Community Center indoor space. Councilmember Sherril and Vice-Mayor Jackson shared their
reservations related to the request. Through conversation it became the consensus of Council to
have Ms. Coffey and Ms. Jenkins to work on an agreement with the tailgate market for use of the
facility.

8



Page 3 of 4                                                                                                                                       
 October 25, 2021  

   Town Council  
    Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

B. Fee Schedule Amendments – Facility Fees 
 
Ms. Stovall presented information related to an update of the facility fees for the Community 
Center to Town Council.  
 
Councilmember McKenna made a motion to approve the revised facility fees with the additional 
of a maximum daily fee. Councilmember Chase seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 
Motion passed 4-0.     
  

C. US Cellular Easement Acquisition Agreement  
Ms. Jackson presented Council with information related to the proposed easement agreement with 
US Cellular. The possible increase in the height of the tower as allowed by the easement 
agreement and other provisions within the easement agreement led Town Council to 
reconsideration its willingness to convey a perpetual easement. The lease agreement that has a 
term beginning January 1, 2022, will be unaffected.  
 
Vice Mayor Jackson motioned to decline the easement agreement as presented. Councilmember 
Chase seconded and all voted in favor. Motion passed 4-0. 
 

D. Update on Criminal Justice Reform and Proposed Code Amendment 
Ms. Jackson presented Council with information related to recent legislative changes which 
affects the town’s police department operations and the decriminalization of certain types of code 
violations. With an effective date of December 1, ordinance violations will be unenforceable 
under criminal law unless action is taken by Town Council to provide otherwise. An ordinance 
was presented as a stop gap measure until staff can provide a fuller analysis and recommendation.   
 
Councilmember Sherrill motioned to adopt the ordinance revisions presented. Vice Mayor 
Jackson seconded and all voted in favor. Motion passed 4-0. 
 

E. Annexation Petition for 25+ Acres on Ollie Weaver Road 
Mr. Eller presented Council with information related to the proposed voluntary annexation 
including the location of the properties, the aggregate acreage of the properties and the desired 
zoning district and use of the properties if annexed. Mr. Eller also noted that the action requested 
of Council, ordering the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the annexation, would not 
bind Council to a particular action in future deliberations on the petition. Ms. Jackson noted that 
there is no set timeframe for Council to consider the annexation petition. 
 
Doug Theroux provided his opinion that the annexation petition was invalid due to a discrepancy 
in the acreage shown on the survey and the acreage shown on the GIS system and irregularities 
related to the correction of the date on the application. 
 
Warren Sugg spoke to the validity of the annexation petition. 
 
Vice Mayor Jackson motioned to adopt the proposed resolution ordering the Town Clerk to 
investigate the sufficiency of the annexation. Councilmember Sherrill seconded and all voted in 
favor of the motion. Motion passed 4-0.  
 

F. Quarterly Report – Planning 
Mr. Eller presented Town Council with the quarterly report for the Planning Department. 
 

G. Quarterly Report – Finance 

9



Page 4 of 4 
October 25, 2021 

Town Council 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Dozier presented Town Council with the quarterly report for the Finance Department. 

8. Closed Session.
Councilmember Sherrill motioned to enter closed session as per NCGS Chapter 143-318.11(a)(3) to
consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-
client privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged.
Councilmember Chase seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed 4-0.

[Closed Session]

Councilmember Sherrill motioned to exit closed session. Councilmember McKenna seconded and all
voted in favor of the motion to exit closed session and re-enter open session.

9. Adjournment.
Vice Mayor Jackson motioned to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Chase seconded and all voted
in favor. Meeting adjourned at 9:45 p.m.

__________________________________________ 
James Eller, Town Clerk 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Resolutions 

PRESENTER:  Water Resources Superintendent Trent Duncan 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution – Water Supply Resiliency Improvements 
Resolution – Water Treatment Expansion Project 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Pursuant to action taken by Town Council on December 20, 2021, WithersRavenel is in the 
process of preparing for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Spring 2022 
cycle of grants and loans in order to seek grant/loan funding for the Town and certain 
water supply resiliency improvements and/or the expansion of the water treatment plant. 
As previously noted, there are likely to be millions of dollars that will be available for 
water projects which could be used on projects that are under consideration by the Town.  

For application purposes, water supply resiliency improvements include a new generator 
at the WTP, a new generator at the raw water intake, back wash pumps, a new high service 
pump station, a new clearwell, and conversion from chlorine gas to sodium hypochlorite. 
These needed improvements are expected to score well in the grant review process. 
Town Council is asked to adopted the two resolutions that are attached (one for the water 
supply resiliency improvements and one for the WTP Expansion Project). Each of these 
resolutions do the following:  

• Arrange financing for all remaining costs of the project, if approved for a State
grant/loan award and such award is accepted by Town Council

• Agree that should the Town default on any loan repayment that any State funds
that the Town is entitled to can be withheld from the Town until loan is paid off

• Maintain water rates and fees adequate for the proper operation, maintenance, and
administration of the system and the repayment of all principal and interest

• Provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on completion of
construction

• Authorize the Mayor and appropriate staff to execute and provide documents
necessary for a complete application

• Comply with application federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and rules, and to
any grant or loan provisions

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to take action to adopt the attached resolutions as presented. 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE RESOLUTION CONCERNING APPLICATION FOR GRANTS 
AND/OR LOANS FOR WATER SUPPLY RESILIENCY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS  

WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water 
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
treatment works, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville has need for and intends to construct a drinking water treatment 
works project described as the Water Supply Resiliency Improvements project, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville has a need for and intends to undertake a project to increase 
resiliency of the water supply by installing a new generator at the WTP, new generator at 
the raw water intake, back wash pumps and a new high service pump station, a new 
clearwell, and conversion from chlorine gas to sodium hypochlorite, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville intends to request state grant/loan assistance for the project, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE: 
That Town of Weaverville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of 
the project, if approved for a State grant/loan award and such award is accepted by 
Applicant. 

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project 
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate 
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the 
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the Town of Weaverville to 
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the Town of Weaverville any 
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of 
the loan. 

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 
completion of construction thereof. 

That Selena Coffey, Town Manager, and Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor, the Authorized 
Officials, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized to execute and file an application 
on behalf of the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a grant/loan to aid in the 
construction of the project described above. 

That the Authorized Officials, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, 
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to 
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

ADOPTED this the 24th day of January, 2022, at Weaverville, North Carolina. 

 
 

Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor 
 

21



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE RESOLUTION CONCERNING APPLICATION FOR GRANTS 
AND/OR LOANS FOR WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water 
Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
treatment works, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville has need for and intends to construct a drinking water treatment 
works project described as the expansion of the water treatment plant.  The Town 
currently owns and operates a 1.5 MGD water treatment plant and associated water 
distribution system. This plant was constructed in 1996 and is approaching water 
production values which trigger mandated actions to begin the planning, design, and 
construction process for increase capacity of this facility, and 

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville has a need for and intends to undertake a project to expand the 
plant to 3.0 MGD by providing a second treatment train identical to the existing train 
(claricone, flash mix, flocculation, sedimentation, and filtration). A new pump will be 
added to the existing intake pump station in a space provided in the original plant 
construction. Approximately 1,330 LF of piping will be installed along Sam’s Road to 
extend the existing NPDES discharge of filter backwash. The existing clearwell will be 
converted to sludge handling and a new 0.5 MG clearwell and high service pumps will be 
constructed on the existing plant site. One generator for the WTP site and one for the 
intake pump station is also included in the project. All disturbed areas will be within the 
existing WTP site except for the drain line which runs along Sams Road from the WTP to 
the Intake pump station site, and  

WHEREAS, The Town of Weaverville intends to request state grant/loan assistance for the project, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE: 
That Town of Weaverville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs of 
the project, if approved for a State grant/loan award and such award is accepted by 
Applicant. 

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project 
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate 
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the 
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the Town of Weaverville to 
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the Town of Weaverville any 
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of 
the loan. 

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 
completion of construction thereof. 

That Selena Coffey, Town Manager, and Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor, the Authorized 
Officials, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized to execute and file an application 
on behalf of the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a grant and/or loan to aid 
in the construction of the project described above. 

That the Authorized Officials, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 

22



above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal, 
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to 
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

ADOPTED this the 24th day of January, 2022, at Weaverville, North Carolina. 

 
 
 

Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor 
 

  

23



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments to Personnel Policy 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager and Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Resolution Amending the Town’s Personnel Policy 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Manager recommends that Town Council consider amendments to the 
Personnel Policy and its provisions concerning holiday pay, sick leave accrual, and 
discipline. The specific amendments that are recommended are as follows: 

• Revising the definition of workday to include a reference to holiday pay
• Revising the holiday leave section to delete the number 12 in recognition that most

years have 12 holidays a year, but some years may have 13 holiday days and others
may have 11, depending on the days of the week on which holidays fall [this
happened recently with regard to New Year’s Day]

• Changing the holiday leave section to provide that holiday leave is to be accrued
similar to sick leave so that all employees, including those that must work holidays,
can take time off and not just get paid for the holiday worked

• Simplifying the sick leave accrual provision by relying on the definition of workday
• Adding employee assistance plan counseling/assessment to disciplinary options
• Providing that a disciplinary conference should be held for demotions as well as

dismissals; revising the disciplinary conference section to more clearly outline the
step-by-step process and indicating that the process should be used to the greatest
extent possible under the circumstances

None of these proposed amendments have an anticipated budgetary impact. The Town 
Attorney assisted in the drafting of these amendments and joins in the recommendation 
that they be adopted.  

Due to its length the entire personnel policy is not provided with this agenda item but is 
available upon request.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve these amendments to the Town’s Personnel Policy. A 
resolution that accomplishes this requested action is attached for Town Council’s 
consideration.  

24



1 
 

 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE TOWN’S PERSONNEL POLICY 
 

WHEREAS, Part 4 of Article 7 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes sets forth 
certain requirements and provides certain authority to Town Council regarding its employees and the 
establishment of policies regarding its employees; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article I, Section 6 of the Personnel Policy, the Town Manager provided 
Town Council with copies of the adopted policies and her recommendations on certain amendments and 
additions to the Town’s policies; and 

WHEREAS, Weaverville has previously adopted a Personnel Policy and related policies, routinely 
reviews those policies, and now wishes to adopt new and revised policies regarding personnel and related 
matters to set forth general guidelines for its employees’ conduct and benefits; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA, 
ACTING THROUGH ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Town Council hereby amends the PERSONNEL POLICY as noted below with an immediate effective 
date and directs that Tab 1 of the Policy and Procedures Manual be updated with the amended policy: 
 
• The definition of workday in Article II is amended to read as follows:  

Workday – For shift personnel operating in the fire department and the police department 
a workday for holiday leave, annual leave and sick leave calculations will be 12 hours. For 
shift personnel operating at the water treatment plant a workday for holiday leave, annual 
leave and sick leave calculations will be 10 hours. For all others, including non-shift 
personnel, a workday for these calculations will be either 8 hours or 7.5 hours depending 
on the schedule established in the employee’s department. 

• Article VII, Section 2 is retitled “Holiday Leave” and is replaced in its entirety with the following 
provisions: 

(a) Holiday Schedule - The Town provides paid holidays each calendar year for eligible 
employees and recognizes the following holidays: 

New Year’s Day – 1 day 
  Martin Luther King Birthday – 1 day 
  Good Friday – 1 day 
  Memorial Day – 1 day 
  Independence Day – 1 day 
  Labor Day – 1 day 
  Veteran’s Day – 1 day 
  Thanksgiving – 2 days 

Christmas – 3 days  
The Town Manager shall adopt and publish a schedule of holidays each year consistent 
with this policy but taking into consideration the days of the week on which the above 
holidays fall.  

(b) Religious Holidays – Employees wishing to schedule time off for religious observances 
must request leave from their respective department heads.  The department head will 
attempt to arrange the work schedule so that an employee may be granted annual leave for 

25



2 
 

the religious observance.   Annual leave for religious observance may be denied only when 
granting the leave would create an undue hardship for the Town. 

(c) Eligibility - All fulltime and part-time employees, whether regular or probationary 
employees shall receive paid holiday leave. Auxiliary and temporary employees are eligible 
for holiday pay if, and only if, they actually work the holiday.  

(d) Accrual Rate - Holiday leave shall accrue at a rate of one (1) workday per month (see 
Article II for definition of workday).  

(e) Accumulation – Holiday leave may be accumulated without any maximum between 
January 1 and December 31 of each calendar year. All holiday leave balances accumulated 
in the prior year shall be converted to annual leave in January of each year.  

As the latter part of the calendar year includes several holidays, employees are cautioned to 
be mindful of their use of holiday leave so that a sufficient holiday leave balance is available 
for use in November and December.  

(f) Manner of Taking – Holiday leave requests should typically be submitted with each 
payroll that includes a holiday. For employees that are required to work a holiday, holiday 
leave requests should follow the procedures for taking annual leave. 

(g) Payment Upon Separation - At separation all holiday leave accumulated by an employee 
shall be treated like annual leave and paid out in accordance with those provisions. 

• Article VII, Section 4, subparagraph (b), concerning sick leave accrual is amended to read as 
follows:   

Accrual Rate – Sick leave shall accrue at a rate of one (1) workday per month (see 
Article II for definition of workday).”   

• The following provision is added to Article XIV, Section 2, as an additional disciplinary 
option:  

Recommended and/or mandatory session(s) with an employee assistance program, 
with compliance and participation level being reported and included in the 
employee’s personnel file. 

•  Article XIV, Section 3 is retitled “Disciplinary Conference for Demotion or Dismissal” and is 
replaced in its entirety with the following: 

When the demotion or dismissal of an employee is recommended or being considered, to 
the greatest extent possible under the circumstances the following procedural guidelines 
shall apply. Modifications to the procedures shall only be made with the consent of the 
Town Manager.  
(a) Step 1 – Department Head Recommendation – A Department Head 

recommending demotion or dismissal shall present a written recommendation to 
the Town Manager and receive his or her authorization to hold a pre-disciplinary 
conference with the employee.  A Department Head conducting a pre-disciplinary 
conference shall have the authority to recommend what, if any, disciplinary action 
should be imposed on the employee, but does not have the authority to dismiss any 
employee. 

(b) Step 2 – Pre-Disciplinary Conference Scheduled – The Department Head or Town 
Manager shall schedule a pre-disciplinary conference with the employee and 
provide notice to the employee. Advance written notice of the pre- disciplinary 

26



3 

conference shall be given to the employee of the time, location, and the issue for 
which demotion or dismissal has been recommended.  The amount of advance 
notice shall be as much as is practical or reasonable under the circumstances. 

(c) Step 3 – Pre-Disciplinary Conference Conducted – The Department Head or
Town Manager shall conduct a pre-disciplinary conference with the employee, The
purpose of the pre-disciplinary conference shall be to review the recommendation
for demotion or dismissal with the affected employee and to listen to and to
consider any information put forth by the employee, in order to ensure that a
demotion or dismissal decision is sound and not based on misinformation or
mistake.
Attendance at the conference will be limited to the employee and the person
conducting the conference. The Human Resources Officer or a second Town
representative may be present at the Town Manager's direction.  Security personnel
may be present when, in the discretion of the person conducting the conference, a
need for security exists.  No attorneys representing either side may attend the
conference.
In the conference, the Department Head or Town Manager shall give the employee
oral or written notice of the recommendation for demotion or dismissal, including
specific reasons for the proposed discipline and a summary of the information
supporting that recommendation.
The employee shall have an opportunity to respond, to refute information
supporting the recommended action and to offer information or arguments in
support of the employee's position.
Every effort shall be made by the Department Head or the Town Manager to ensure
that the employee has had a full opportunity to set forth any available information
in opposition to the recommendation to demote or dismiss prior to the end of the
conference. This opportunity shall not include the right to present witnesses.
Written notes of the conference must be taken by a Town representative attending
the conference to summarize the employee’s response and such notes shall be
included in the employee’s personnel file.

(d) Step 4 – Department Head Final Recommendation – Not more than two business
days after the conference, and as promptly as possible under the circumstances, the
Department Head shall submit a final written recommendation to the Town
Manager. In the discretion of the Town Manager this time frame may be extended if
the employee is on leave with pay.

(e) Step 5 – Town Manager Review and Decision – Following the conference and
receipt of the Department Head’s final recommendation, the Town Manager shall
review and consider the response of the employee and reach a decision on the
proposed recommendation of demotion or dismissal.
To minimize the risk of demotion or dismissal upon erroneous information, and to
allow time following the conference for management to review all necessary
information, the decision should not be made or communicated to the employee
prior to the beginning of the next business day following the conclusion of the
conference and receipt of the Department Head’s final recommendation.
The Town Manager’s decision should normally be made within two business days
after the conclusion of the conference and receipt of Department Head’s final
recommendation. In the discretion of the Town Manager this time frame may be
extended if the employee is on leave with pay.

27



4 

(f) Step 6 – Employee Notification of Decision – If the Town Manager's decision is to
demote or dismiss the employee, a written letter of demotion or dismissal
containing the effective date of the demotion or dismissal and the employee's appeal
rights shall be issued to the employee in person or by mail to the last known address
of the employee.
The effective date of a demotion or dismissal shall be determined by the Town
Manager but should not be earlier than the date of the letter nor more than 14
calendar days after the notice of demotion or dismissal.
The employee shall be informed in the final decision letter that the final decision
letter is a public record and that the agency is required by law to release it pursuant
to a public records request.

(g) Step 7 – Employee Appeal of Decision – A demoted or dismissed employee has 10
calendar days from the date of the letter of demotion or dismissal in which to
submit an appeal under Article XV. If an employee is dismissed and appeals his or
her dismissal through the Town’s grievance procedure set out in Article XV, the
Town’s final decision shall be amended to set forth the specific acts or omissions
that are the basis of the employee's dismissal.

2. The Town Manager is hereby directed to continue to maintain a Policy and Procedures Manual which
is to include, but is not limited to, all personnel and related policies adopted by Town Council and the
Town Manager, and, in accordance with Section 6 of Article I of the Personnel Policy, is directed to
continue to develop, maintain and administer such guidelines, policies, and procedures indicated in
the Personnel Policy, and to provide copies of those adopted policies to Town Council on an annual
basis or upon request.

3. This resolution shall become effective immediately.

ADOPTED this ______ day of January, 2022. 

_____________________________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 
JAMES ELLER, Town Clerk 

28



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Donation of Surplus Personal 
Property – Blue Lights and Related Speakers and Supplies 

PRESENTER: Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Resolution 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

For several years the Police Department has been storing several obsolete and 
unneeded blue light bars and related speakers, wiring and supplies, and would now 
like them officially deemed surplus so that they can be disposed of. 

As allowed by G.S. § 160A-280, the Town Manager proposes that these items be 
declared surplus and donated to the Wellford Police Department in Spartanburg 
County, South Carolina. 

Notice of an intent to take this action was posted on the Town’s website and main 
bulletin board on January 18, 2022, so action at tonight’s meeting to adopt a 
resolution declaring the surplus and authorizing the donation is appropriate.  

The Town Attorney has prepared a release of liability for donated equipment for the 
receiving entity to sign prior to the donation and that is referenced as a condition of 
the donation in the proposed resolution.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Adoption of the attached Resolution Declaring Obsolete Blue Lights and Related 
Speakers, Wiring and Supplies as Surplus Personal Property and Approving Donation 
Pursuant to G.S. § 160A-280. 

29



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

RESOLUTION DECLARING OBSOLETE BLUE LIGHTS AND RELATED 
SPEAKERS, WIRING AND SUPPLIES AS SURPLUS PERSONAL 

PROPERTY AND APPROVING DONATION PURSUANT TO G.S. §160A-280 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-280 authorizes 
Town Council to donate surplus personal property to another governmental unit 
and/or a nonprofit organization incorporated in North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has certain law enforcement equipment 
that is of little value, obsolete and out of service for many years, rending such 
equipment as surplus property (hereinafter collectively “Surplus Property”): 4 blue 
lights and 2 speakers with wiring and 1 box of miscellaneous replacement blue light 
bulbs and strobes; 

 WHEREAS, the Wellford Police Department in Spartanburg County, South 
Carolina, a governmental unit, has expressed an interest in receiving the Surplus 
Property;  

WHEREAS, in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 
§160A-280, notice of Town Council’s intent to declare these personal property
items as surplus and donate them to the Wellford Police Department was
posted on the Town’s website and main bulletin board on January 18, 2022;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that, as allowed by North Carolina 
General Statute §160A-280, the personal property described herein is 
hereby declared as surplus and the respective donations is authorized 
subject to the execution of a release of liability for donated equipment to be 
drafted and approved by the Town Attorney.  

ADOPTED this the 24th day of January, 2022. 

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

JAMES ELLER, Town Clerk 

30



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

Town Manager’s Monthly Report
Selena D. Coffey, ICMA-Credentialed Manager 

January 2022 

July 4 Event 
I want to update Town Council and get your input regarding our July 4 fireworks for 2022. Per 
Town Council’s conversations after last year’s event, I have looked into the following issues: 

1) Noise Complaints: Because we had complaints from downtown residents regarding
noise from our fireworks show, I have requested a quote that will avoid the intentionally
loud “booming” fireworks. Pyrotecnico estimates that we will spend $25,000 for
fireworks this year and says that the fireworks will still be loud, but they can eliminate
“salutes” (the biggest booms).

2) Potential for a Laser Show:  In another effort to look prevent as much noise from the
fireworks, I spoke with Pyrotecnico regarding the potential for a laser show this year.
Pyrotecnico’s shared that their outdoor shows will typically range from $25,000-$40,000
for a 15-20 minute patriotic show.  One drawback is that the laser beams MUST
terminate onto a non-reflective surface (i.e. thick tree line, building, screen, mountain,
etc). Due to this, shows typically end up only catering to a small space.  People must "be
there" and be able to see the laser units in order for it to have an impact.

I would like for Town Council to share its thoughts regarding our fireworks show for July 4 
during Monday’s meeting or soon thereafter. 

Noise Ordinance Update 
Staff is completing a final draft of the proposed Noise Ordinance update and will have this for Town 
Council’s February meeting. 

Public Wi-Fi Update 
Skyrunner requested a one-month extension to the public wi-fi funding from Land of Sky Regional 
Council. The extension was approved and Skyrunner continues to work towards completion of the 
Town’s public wi-fi projects. Public wi-fi is now functional at Lake Louise Park and work is ongoing on 
Main Street and in the Main Street Nature Park. Thanks to Mayor Fitzsimmons and Councilwoman 
Cordell for making contact with some of our downtown business owners requesting their support for 
the project and hosting access points. 

February 8 Workshop 
Town Council’s next workshop will be held Tuesday, February 8 at 6pm. This workshop topic will be a 
continued discussion on the comprehensive pay and classification study by David Hill, Piedmont 
Regional Council. 

31



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

DATE OF MEETING:  January 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Water Commitment Request – 60 Ollie Weaver Road 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager/Public Works Director 

ATTACHMENTS:          Application for Water Commitment Letter 
Proposed Site Plan 
Draft Commitment Letter 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Civil Design Concepts, on behalf of the owner/developer of certain properties on Ollie 
Weaver Road, submitted a water commitment application on October 12, 2021, requesting 
98,000 GPD for a proposed apartment complex consisting of 244 dwelling units on the 
following parcels on Ollie Weaver Road: 9733-73-5347, 9733-83-3019, and 9733-83-1054. 

To serve this project the developer has requested a water commitment of 98,000 gallons 
per day with peak demand of 1,000 gallons per minute. No extension of the Town’s water 
system is needed to serve this project as it would connect directly into the new water main 
on Ollie Weaver Road.  

This request is brought to Town Council pursuant to Code Section 30-77(3) which requires 
Town Council approval on commitments involving water meters that are larger than 2 
inches.  Applications are required to be presented to you after it has been determined by 
the town engineer that the system has adequate capacity to serve the connection. The 
Public Works Director, who also serves as the town engineer, has reviewed the request and 
has found that there is sufficient capacity within the Town’s water system to accommodate 
this request without any adverse effects on service to the Town’s current water customers.  

Town Code Sec. 30-77(3) indicates that the “criteria for the determination shall be based 
on the town manager’s recommendations; the standing of the request as it relates to 
priorities listed in Town Code Sec. 30-31(5) and/or the exclusive right of the town to deny 
the request for any reason whatsoever.” Priorities listed in Town Code Sec. 30-31(5) 
include: capacity in the system, public health and safety, orderly growth, environmental 
conditions, capital improvement plans, annexation plans, master plans, zoning, fiscal 
impact on the town, and effect on service to existing customers. 

Town Manager recommends that Town Council approach this water request carefully given 
that decisions have not yet been made concerning increasing the capacity in the water 
treatment plant and reminds Town Council that there is no specific time frame within 
which Town Council must act on the request. Town staff will be available at tonight’s 
meeting to answer any questions that Town Council might have. In the event that Town 
Council wishes to proceed with this request a draft commitment letter is attached for 
consideration. 

ACTION REQUESTED:  

Council discussion and decision regarding the water commitment application. 

32



33



34



35



36



The Town of 
 Weaverville

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A  

30 South Main Street • Weaverville, NC 28787 (PO Box 338) 
(828) 645-7116 • Fax (828) 645-4776

www.weavervillenc.org

January 25, 2022 

Mr. Warren Sugg, PE 
Civil Design Concepts, PA 
168 Patton Avenue 
Asheville, NC  28801 

Re: Water Commitment for 60 Ollie Weaver Road Apartments 
PIN 9733-73-5347, 9733-83-3019, 9733-83-1054 

Dear Mr. Sugg: 

This letter represents the Town of Weaverville’s review of the water commitment request that 
was submitted by you on behalf of WeaverVegas, LLC dated September 15, 2021 and received 
on October 12, 2021.  Your request indicated that a proposed development on the properties 
listed above would consist of 11 buildings totaling 244 units.  You requested domestic water 
service for 244 apartments at 400 GPD each (97,800 GPD) rounded to 98,000 GPD and fire 
protection service at 1000 GPM.  Based on our review, it has been determined that our water 
system has adequate capacity to serve this connection.  Therefore, based on the information 
that you have provided, your commitment request is hereby approved to provide your project 
with domestic water service and fire protection flow. The following represents the conditions 
that must be met in order for the Town to provide water to your project: 

1. Please have your engineer coordinate with Weaverville Public Works Director Dale
Pennell on the detailed plans, materials, and installation of this water service.

2. All water services must be installed in accordance with Town Code and Water Policies,
Procedures, and Specifications. Component submittals must be provided to the Public
Works Director for approvals. Work must be performed by a NC Licensed Utility
Contractor and supervised by Town staff.

3. The Owner/Developer is to pay all costs associated with the installation of the water
service, water service line, taps, meters, valves, and other related appurtenances.

4. Tap fees are not required where taps, meters, and associated appurtenances are
provided and installed by Owner/Developer; a Tap Fee must be paid if the tap is made by

37

DRAFT

http://www.weavervillenc.org/


Town Staff.  System Development Fees, Service Charges, and Deposits will be assessed at 
the time water service is requested to be turned on. 

5. This water commitment is valid only for the project described in this letter and is valid for
1 year from the date of this letter.  Installation of the water system improvements must
begin before the expiration date unless otherwise extended per town policy.

6. This water commitment does not constitute the Town’s approval and acceptance of the
proposed project.

7. This water commitment cannot be used to secure a building permit. To be eligible for a
building permit, your water tap(s) for the project must be installed, approved, and
activated.

You paid $100 on January 14, 2022 as part of your Application for a Commitment Letter.  
Additional fees based on the size of the domestic meter for the approved connection will be 
required to activate your account per the Town’s current Fee Schedule. 

Sincerely, 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CA 
Town Manager 

cc: Dale Pennell, Public Works Director 

38

DRAFT



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2022 

SUBJECT: Water System Committee Recommendations 

PRESENTER:  Vice Mayor Jeff McKenna 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Resolution 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

As discussed during Town Council’s workshop on January 18, 2022, the Water System 
Committee (comprised of Vice Mayor Jeff McKenna and Councilmembers Andrew Nagle 
and John Chase) is proposing three recommendations concerning the Town’s water system. 
Those recommendations are summarized as follows: 

• Move ahead with deliberate speed on the water supply resiliency, redundancy,
and safety improvements and pursue all reasonable funding sources including
the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund grants/loans. These improvements
include a new generator at the WTP, a new generator at the raw water intake, back
wash pumps, a new high service pump station, a new clearwell, and conversion from
chlorine gas to sodium hypochlorite. Under a separate agenda item Town Council has
been asked to adopted two resolutions that authorize the applications for the Spring
2022 grant/loan cycle of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund for the water
supply resiliency items and for the expansion of the water treatment plant. Adoption of
those resolutions is consistent with this recommendation.

• Engage in formal discussions with neighboring jurisdictions and other
stakeholders to determine the feasibility of cooperative agreements that will
allow a broader regional approach to the supply of water in and around the
Town of Weaverville. It is hoped that these conversations could be taken within
the next 6 to 9 months.

• Delay the Town’s Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project while the regional
water discussions are taking place and the water supply resiliency
improvements are being pursued. Consider carefully any water allocation
requests for properties outside of Town limits during these regional
conversations.

In the event that Town Council would like to proceed with these recommendations, a 
proposed resolution is attached for Town Council’s consideration. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council discussion and possible action concerning these recommendations. 

39



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE TOWN’S WATER SYSTEM 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town owns and operates a water system that includes a water 
treatment plant that was completed in 1997 and has a permitted design capacity which 
allows the withdrawal of up to 1.5 million gallons of raw water per day from the Ivy River;  

 WHEREAS, the plant is in need of some improvements in order to address water 
supply resiliency, redundancy, and safety concerns (“water supply resiliency 
improvements”), including the following; a new generator at the WTP, a new generator at 
the raw water intake, back wash pumps, a new high service pump station, a new clearwell, 
and conversion from chlorine gas to sodium hypochlorite; and 

 WHEREAS, preliminary engineering reports secured by the Town indicate that 
there will likely be a need to expand the water production capacity in the Town’s water 
treatment plant in the next ten years in order to accommodate expected growth in the area; 

 WHEREAS, the Ivy River is a regional natural resource and there appears to be 
interest among the Town’s neighboring jurisdictions and other stakeholders to have formal 
discussions concerning the feasibility of cooperative agreements that will allow a broader 
regional approach to the supply of water in and around the Town of Weaverville; 

WHEREAS, while it is not prudent to delay the water supply resiliency 
improvements, there is sufficient current capacity in the water treatment plant to delay a 
decision on that project pending the outcomes of the regional water discussions; 

 Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED by the Weaverville Town Council as follows: 

1. The Mayor and Town Manager are directed to contact neighboring jurisdictions and 
stakeholders to gauge interest in participating in conversations concerning the 
feasibility of cooperative agreements that will allow a broader regional approach to 
the public supply of water in and around the Town of Weaverville. Governmental 
jurisdictions and stakeholders to invite to those conservations include, but are not 
limited to: Buncombe County, Marshall, Mars Hill, Madison County, Friends of the 
Ivy, Madison and Buncombe County Soil & Water Conservation District, Land-of-Sky 
Regional Council and North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality. Once 
interest is determined an interlocal regional water committee can be formed with 
representation from all interested parties. 

2. Town Council action on the expansion of its Ivy River Water Treatment Plant is 
delayed while regional water discussions are occurring. 

3. Town Council has agreed to approach water allocation requests pertaining to 
properties outside of the Town’s limits very conservatively until a decision is made 
on the expansion of the water treatment plant and while regional water discussions 
are occurring. 

40



4. Staff is directed to proceed with the water supply resiliency improvements by 
determining cost estimates, attempting to secure grant and/or loan financing for the 
improvements, developing a financing plan, and to proceed with all necessary 
engineering, permitting, and bidding, and all other tasks necessary to have these 
needed improvements under contract as soon as practicable. 

5. The Mayor and staff are directed to provide regular updates to Town Council on the 
regional water conservation and the water supply resiliency improvements. 
 
THIS the 24th day of January, 2022. 
 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

_____________________________________________ 
Patrick Fitzsimmons, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 
________________________________________ 
James Eller, Town Clerk 

41



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 24, 2022 

Subject: Proposed Recreation Complex at Lake Louise Park 

Presenter: Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments: Proposal for Recreation Complex, Formerly referenced as Phase II 
of the Community Center Project 

Description: 

On November 16, 2021, Town Council heard public input on potential recreation amenities for the 
project formerly referred to as “Phase II, Community Center Project”. This project involves the use of 
the land above the new Weaverville Community Center at Dottie Sherrill Knoll for outdoor recreation 
amenities.  

During the public input meeting in November 2021, Town Council heard significant support for the 
construction of pickleball courts on this property, in addition to other amenities such as basketball 
courts and free space/family areas. The public input received closely aligns with the site rendering of 
the subject property developed for the Town just prior to the construction of the Community Center. 
See architectural rendering attached. 

Town Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends that Town Council discuss further and give staff formal direction on 
how Council wishes to proceed with this project. 

42



PROPOSED - 
FOR DISCUSSION 
PURPOSES ONLY

43



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 24, 2022 

Subject: COVID-19 Vaccinations 

Presenter: Town Manager Selena Coffey 

Attachments: COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Plan: Weekly Testing, 
Departmental Incentives, Surcharges 

Description: 

This agenda item serves as an update from the December 2021 Town Council meeting and 
Council’s consensus direction to develop and implement a policy for providing incentives to 
vaccinated employees whose departments achieve a 95% vaccination status and 
implementation of a surcharge for employees who remain unvaccinated (excluding employees 
with qualifying exemptions for medical or religious accommodations). As directed, the attached 
policy was implemented on January 1, 2022. The policy was distributed to Council at 
implementation and is attached for reference. 

Since the date of implementation, only the Administration Department has received 
vaccination incentives. However, as of mid-February, the Public Works Department (pending 
full vaccination defined by policy and noted with an asterisk * below) is expected to achieve 
100% vaccination status and will receive the incentives with the next payroll pending full 
vaccination of employees.  

The table below provides vaccination figures by department: 

Departments # Vaccinated # Unvaccinated Total Employees % Vaccinated 
Based on # Active Employees as of 01/19/2022 

Administration 8 0 8 100.0% 
Fire Department 16 8 24 66.7% 
Police Department 10 7 17 58.8% 
Public Works Department 
*pending 2nd vaccines for 2 emps 19 0 19 100.0% 
Water Treatment Department 3 2 5 60.0% 
Total 56 17 73 76.7% 

44



It is not likely that the remaining departments (Police, Fire, and Water Treatment Plant) will 
reach a 95% vaccination rate. The Town Manager requests that Town Council give 
consideration to directing a revision of the policy to reflect a lesser percentage by department 
or to remove the departmental percentage factor altogether, allowing additional employees 
who were vaccinated early on and prior to the implementation of this policy, regardless of their 
departmental vaccination status, to be rewarded with incentives. The following justifications 
are offered for Council’s consideration: 

• Reaching the 95% guideline, when analyzed on a total Town employment basis, only
allows for 4 employees out of our entire current workforce to remain unvaccinated.

• To achieve a 95% vaccination rate on a departmental basis, the Police Department
and Water Treatment Department must have all (100%) employees vaccinated.

As noted in the second section of the policy and based on your consensus, we will be 
implementing a $60 per pay period surcharge for those who choose to not reach full 
vaccination status by March 1, 2022. The surcharge amount was calculated based on two weeks 
of pay at the average hourly wage of currently unvaccinated employees, divided by 26 (the total 
number of pay periods in one year).  The assumption is that an employee who tests positive for 
COVID could miss two weeks of work on average, resulting in either using a part-time or 
seasonal employee to fill their position, or overtime from other staff members. Should Town 
Council wish to revise this surcharge section of the policy or direct the Town Manager to 
proceed in another direction, this would be the appropriate time for that direction. 

Town Council Action Requested:  

The Town Manager requests discussion and direction from Town Council. 

45



COVID-19 VACCINATION INCENTIVE PLAN 
WEEKLY TESTING, DEPARTMENTAL INCENTIVES, SURCHARGES 

• Plan Implementation Date – January 1, 2022 

• “Fully Vaccinated” Defined – As used in this plan “fully vaccinated” will be as defined by the CDC 
which may be, from time to time, amended by the CDC 

o As of 12/28/2021 – A person is considered fully vaccinated against COVID-19 two weeks 
or more after receipt of the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-BioNTech and Moderna) 
or two weeks or more after receipt of the single dose of the Janssen vaccine. 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/fully-
vaccinated.html?s_cid=11350:cdc%20guidance%20fully%20vaccinated:sem.ga:p:RG:GM:gen:PTN:FY21  

• COVID-19 Testing for Employees Not Fully Vaccinated – Weekly COVID-19 testing will 
continue for all Town employees who have not provided proof that they are fully vaccinated  

o Weekly testing must be conducted at a testing site such as a pharmacy or other healthcare 
provider; link to testing sites: https://covid19.ncdhhs.gov/about-covid-19/testing/find-my-testing-place  

o Employees who have tested positive for COVID-19 and recovered do not have to be tested 
weekly until 3 months after recovery as long as they do not have new symptoms 

o Tests performed can be either a rapid test or a PCR test, but not an at-home test 
o Cost of testing is the responsibility of the employee, but should be available at low or no 

cost to the employee 

• Incentives for Fully Vaccinated Employees – Financial incentives will be offered on a 
departmental basis to get to a vaccination rate of 95% or higher (excluding those employees 
qualifying for exemptions based on medical or religious accommodations [see section below]) 

o Fully vaccinated employees will be eligible for financial incentives once their departments 
reach a minimum of 95% vaccination rate as follows (as of 12/22/21) 
 Administration – 8 out of 8 employees  
 Emergency Services (Police and Fire) – 42 out of 44 employees 
 Public Works and Water – 23 out of 24 employees 

o Amount of financial incentive 
 $250 to each employee that is fully vaccinated 
 $50 additional to each employee that has received a booster shot 

o First incentive payments will be provided with the first payroll in January (1/13/22) for 
qualified employees; subsequent incentive payments will be provided with each payroll 
period thereafter for qualifying employees 

o Incentive payments will be added to payroll and will be subject to applicable payroll taxes 
and retirement and 401(k) contribution calculations 

o Vaccinations or boosters obtained after March 1, 2022, will not be eligible for incentives 

• Surcharge for Employees Not Fully Vaccinated – Beginning March 1, 2022, the Town’s group 
health insurance plan will be amended to add a health-contingent activity surcharge for 
employees not fully vaccinated against COVID-19 in order for the employee and their dependents 
(if any) to stay enrolled in the Town’s health insurance plan 

o Employees who are fully vaccinated will not be affected 
o Employees who have been granted an exemption due to a medical or religious 

accommodation will not be affected [see section below] 
o Employees who are not fully vaccinated by March 1, 2022, and do not have an exemption 

based on a medical or religious accommodation [see section below] will have a surcharge 
of $60.00 per pay period deducted from their paychecks  

o Surcharges will begin with the first payroll in March (3/10/22) 
o The surcharge will continue until the employee has been fully vaccinated, has been granted 

an exemption, or the surcharge has been discontinued in the discretion of the Town 
o Employees can opt out of the surcharge but such action will terminate coverage under the 

Town’s group health insurance plan for the employee and their dependents (if any) 

• Exemptions for Medical and/or Religious Accommodations –  
o Reasonable accommodations will be made under the ADA for employees with disability 

related issues affecting their ability to get a COVID-19 vaccination 
o Reasonable accommodations will be made under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act for 

employees with sincerely held religious beliefs affecting their ability to get a COVID-19 
vaccination 

o Requests for an exemption to the surcharge based on a medical and/or religious 
accommodation must be presented to the Town Manager 

o Documentation supporting a medical and/or religious accommodation is required and 
should be submitted with the request for accommodation 

o Accommodations will be decided based on an interactive process between the Town 
Manager and the employee requesting an exemption 

46

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/fully-vaccinated.html?s_cid=11350:cdc%20guidance%20fully%20vaccinated:sem.ga:p:RG:GM:gen:PTN:FY21
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/vaccines/fully-vaccinated.html?s_cid=11350:cdc%20guidance%20fully%20vaccinated:sem.ga:p:RG:GM:gen:PTN:FY21
https://covid19.ncdhhs.gov/about-covid-19/testing/find-my-testing-place


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 24, 2022 

Economic Development Advisory Committee Update  

Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons 

None 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Mayor will provide Town Council with an update on his efforts to restart 
the Economic Development Advisory Committee. 

47



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 24, 2022 

Subject: Planning Department Report for the 4th Quarter of Calendar 
Year 2021 and Calendar Year End 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning Department Report – Q4, 2021 and Year End 

Description: 

Attached you will find a report reflective of permits issued in October, November and 
December 2021 and Planning and Zoning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment activity 
during the same time. Year end numbers as well as year over year comparisons have also 
been provided.  

Action Requested: 

None 

48



Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department Report – Q4 Calendar Year 2021 

Zoning Permits:  Total: 43 

Single Family, New Construction: 30 
Single Family, Addition or Upfit: 15 
Multifamily, New Construction: 0 

Commercial, New Construction: 2 (Starbucks – Publix Plaza) 
     (Garrison Road Multi-Tenant Commercial) 

Commercial, Addition or Upfit: 6 

Planning Department Report – Year End 2021 

Total Number of Zoning Permits Issued in 2021: 182 
Residential, 76 new construction; 79 addition or upfit 
Commercial, 2 new construction; 25 addition or upfit 
Total, 182 

Year over Year Zoning Permit Comparisons 

2021: Residential, 155; Commercial, 27: Total, 182 
2020: Residential, 101; Commercial, 25; Total, 126 
2019: Residential, 102; Commercial, 25; Institutional, 2; Total, 129 
2018: Residential, 100; Commercial, 23; Total, 123 
2017: Residential, 102; Commercial, 18; Total, 120 
2016: Residential, 79; Commercial, 8; Total, 87 
2015: Residential, 27; Commercial, 4; Total, 31 
2014: Residential, 49; Commercial, 4; Total, 53 (with ETJ) 

49



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Meetings of the Planning Board and Board of Adjustment 

 
Planning and Zoning Board Activity: 
 
October: The Board held its annual organizational meeting reappointing Gary Burge as Chair and 
appointing Rachael Bronson as Vice Chair to the Board. The Board also held continued deliberations 
on the stated goal of the CLUP of study flag lot regulations and offered a unanimous recommendation 
to Town Council on a proposed zoning text amendment related to the regulation of flag lots. 
 
December:  The Board held discussions related to the initial zoning of R-12 for properties subject to a 
voluntary annexation petition and adjacent to Ollie Weaver Road. In a majority vote of 4-1 the Board 
offered a favorable recommendation to Town Council that the proposed zoning is consistent with the 
CLUP. In a majority vote of 3-2 the Board offered a favorable recommendation to Town Council that 
the proposed rezoning was reasonable based upon the factors located in municipal ordinance section 
20-1505(d).  

 
Zoning Board of Adjustment Activity: 
 
December: The Board held its annual organizational meeting reappointing Tycer Lewis as Chair and 
Cindy Wright as Vice Chair to the Board. The Board also discussed its regular meeting schedule date 
and time and elected to send a revised rules of procedure to Town Council for their review and 
approval which would keep the regular meeting date as the second Monday of the month and change 
the regular meeting time from 7pm to 6pm to gain consistency with the meeting times of Town 
Council and the Planning Board.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

50



51



 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

Ad Valorem Tax DMV Tax Utilites Tax Sales Tax Bunc Co Fire Protection ABC Store Water Revenue

YTD Revenue Analysis

12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 Prorated Budget FY22

52



 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

 1,600,000

Governing
Body

Admin Planning Police Fire Streets Sanitation Recreation Water Admin Water
Production

Water
Maintenance

YTD Expenditure Analysis

12/31/2018 12/31/2019 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 Prorated Budget FY22

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
COMMUNITY CENTER PROJECT ESTABLISHED  1/27/2020

ORIGINAL AMENDED PAID IN PAID IN 1/14/2022 CUMULATIVE REMAINING % BUDGET
BUDGET BUDGET FY 2019-FY 2020 FY 2021 YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE REMAINING

EXPENDITURE:
070-300-000-19900 CONSTRUCTION COST 2,779,000.00   2,798,407.66   416,670.00      1,985,956.57     369,770.39        2,772,396.96   26,010.70        1%
070-300-000-19002 ARCHITECTURAL FEES 238,555.00      238,555.00      164,410.30      65,664.80          22,426.91          252,502.01      (13,947.01)       -6%
070-300-000-19008 ENGINEERING FEES 61,811.00        61,811.00        59,324.59        2,486.41            61,811.00        -                    0%
070-300-000-19006 SURVEYS/GEOTECHNICAL/TESTING 31,150.00        31,150.00        8,193.04          146.50               22,726.88 31,066.42        83.58                0%
070-300-000-19003 FIXTURES & EQUIPMENT 92,074.00        161,475.64      1,680.00 143,288.15 24,849.77 169,817.92      (8,342.28)         -5%
070-300-000-19004 FURNITURE & FURNISHINGS -                    119,718.66      2,025.00 99,260.49 101,285.49      18,433.17        15%
070-300-000-19005 CONSTRUCTION ADMIN 2,500.00           2,500.00           1,500.00 1,500.00          1,000.00          40%
070-300-000-19007 LANDSCAPING/SITE-WORK -                    45,798.28        -                    21,904.68 22,948.06 44,852.74        945.54             2%
070-300-000-90000 CONTINGENCY 138,950.00      316.42              -                    -                    316.42             100%
  TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3,344,040.00   3,459,732.66   651,777.93      2,218,985.70     564,468.91        3,435,232.54   24,500.12        1%

Increase= 115,692.66     
FINANCING SOURCE:
070-000-300-60010 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 3,344,040.00   3,424,614.00   651,777.93 2,203,085.70 545,250.25 3,400,113.88 24,500.12        1%
070-000-300-60020 FUNDRAISING CONTRIBUTIONS -                    35,118.66        15,900.00          19,218.66          35,118.66 -                    
  TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 3,344,040.00   3,459,732.66   651,777.93      2,218,985.70     564,468.91        3,435,232.54   24,500.12        1%

64



65



66



American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021 & Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSLFRF)    

US Treasury issued the Final Rule implementing ARP/CSLFRF on January 6, 2022.  There are now four main 
expenditure categories, with several added subcategories.  The main categories are: 

1. Addressing the COVID-19 public health emergency and its negative economic impacts
2. Premium pay for eligible workers performing essential work during the pandemic
3. Necessary water, wastewater, and broadband infrastructure
4. Revenue replacement for lost revenue growth

Key Changes and Clarifications in the Final Rule 

The final rule delivers broader flexibility and greater simplicity in the program, responsive to feedback in the 
comment process.  Among other clarifications and changes are the following features:   

• Replacing Lost Public Sector Revenue:  The final rule offers a standard allowance for revenue loss of up
to $10 million, allowing recipients to select between a standard amount of revenue loss or complete a
full revenue loss calculation.  Recipients that select the standard allowance may use that amount – in
many cases their full award – for general government services without having to prove any actual
revenue loss.

• Public Health and Economic Impacts:  The final rule clarifies that recipients can use funds for capital
expenditures that support an eligible COVID-19 public health or economic response, such as public
housing, schools, and hospitals.  The final rule provides an expanded set of households that are
presumed to be “impacted” and also allows for a broader set of uses to restore and support government
employment.

• Premium Pay:  The final rule broadens the share of eligible workers who can receive premium pay
without a written justification, while maintaining a focus on lower-income and frontline workers
performing essential work.

• Water, Sewer & Broadband Infrastructure:  The final rule significantly broadens eligible broadband
infrastructure investments and adds additional eligible water and sewer infrastructure investments,
including a broader range of lead remediation and stormwater management projects.

Recommendations from NC School of Government: 

 Budget these funds in a grant project ordinance
 Maximize the revenue replacement funds while minimizing administrative burden

o Make strategic expenditure decisions
o Funds can free up general fund revenues for more complex projects

Overview of the Final Rule can be found at: 

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Final-Rule-Overview.pdf 

Reminder:  Funds must be obligated by 12/31/2024 and expended by 12/31/2026. 

67

https://home.treasury.gov/system/files/136/SLFRF-Final-Rule-Overview.pdf

	2021-1-24 Town Council Meeting Agenda
	2022-1-24  - Notice of Remote Electronic Meeting Login Credentials
	2021-12-20 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes - with jj and sdc revisions
	2021-10-25 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes II
	Monthly Tax Report - Dec 2021
	Budget Amendment Form - Public WiFi, Police, Fire_1-24-2022
	Budget Amendment Form - Community Center 1-24-2022
	DWSRF Resolutions - January 2022
	Amendments to Personnel Policy - Holiday Leave, Sick Leave Accrual, Discipline - January 2022
	Resolution Approving Donation of Surplus Personal Property - Obsolete Blue Lights - January 2022
	TM Report Jan 2022
	Water Commitment Application - 60 Ollie Weaver Road - January 2022
	Water System Committee Recommendations - January 2022
	Proposed Recreation Complex 1-24-2022
	Recreation Complex Agenda Summary 
	Community Center Site Plan

	Covid-19 Vaccination Policy Update 1-24-2022
	Economic Development Committee Update - January 2022
	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2021
	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2021.pdf
	Zoning Permit Report - 2021.pdf

	Finance Dept - Quarterly Report 12-31-21
	Quarterly Report -charts 12-31-21.pdf
	Chart1
	Chart2

	Capital Project Fund 070.pdf
	1-14-22 for TC Mtg (2)





